












 

 
MICHIGAN  BUREA U OF  ELECTIONS  

RICH ARD H.  A UST IN BUI LDING ●  1ST  FLOO R ●  430 W.  ALLEGAN ●  LANSING,  MICH IGAN 48918  
Mich ig an.gov /El ec t ions  ●  ( 517) 335-3234  

August 2, 2023 
Jocelyn Howard       
28401 Mound Rd. #1333 
Warren, MI 48090      
 
Re: Schonert v. Howard 

Campaign Finance Complaint No. 23-049 
 

Dear Ms. Howard, 
 

The Department of State (Department) has received a formal complaint alleging you have 
violated MCL 169.247 of the Michigan Campaign Finance Act (MCFA) by failing to include a 
complete and correct identification statement on certain campaign-related materials. A copy of 
the complaint is enclosed. 

The MCFA and corresponding administrative rules require a person who produces printed 
material that relates to an election include the phrase “Paid for by [name and address of the 
person who paid for the item].” MCL 169.247(1), R 169.36(2). Materials produced by anyone 
other than a candidate or the candidate committee are required to include the phrase “with 
regulated funds” after the paid for by statement. MCL 169.247(4). A knowing violation 
constitutes a misdemeanor offense punishable by a fine of up to $1,000.00, imprisonment for up 
to 93 days, or both. MCL 169.247(6). 

Upon review, the evidence submitted supports the conclusion that a potential violation of the Act 
has occurred. The campaign yard signs, website, and fliers uses words of express advocacy by 
urging voters to elect Jocelyn Howard for City Council at large. The committee’s name, address, 
and required disclaimer is omitted. Since this phrase is absent, the evidence supports the 
conclusion that a potential violation has occurred. 

After reaching this conclusion, the Act requires the Department to “endeavor to correct the 
violation or prevent a further violation by using informal methods [,]” if it finds that “there may 
be reason to believe that a violation … has occurred [.]” MCL 169.215(10). The objective of an 
informal resolution is “to correct the violation or prevent a further violation [.]” Id. 

Given this, the Department concludes that a formal warning is a sufficient resolution to the 
complaint and is hereby advising you that MCL 169.247(1) and R 169.36(2) require you to print 
a complete and accurate identification statement on all campaign materials, consisting of the 
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phrase “paid for by” followed by the full name and address of your committee and the phrase 
“with regulated funds.” 

Note that all printed materials produced in the future must include this identification statement. 
For all materials currently in circulation, the paid for by statement must be corrected. If this 
information has been included in your materials and you wish to rebut the Department’s 
conclusion, you must respond in writing to the Department at BOERegulatory@michigan.gov 
within 15 business days of the date of this letter otherwise the Department will treat the 
complaint as resolved. 

Please be advised that this notice has served to remind you of your obligation under the Act to 
identify your printed matter and may be used in future proceedings as evidence that tends to 
establish a knowing violation of the Act. A knowing violation is a misdemeanor offense and may 
merit referral to the Attorney General for enforcement action. MCL 169.247(6), 215(10). 

  
Sincerely, 

 
Regulatory Section 
Bureau of Elections  
Michigan Department of State 

 
c: Matthew Schonert 

mailto:BOERegulatory@michigan.gov


From: Jocelyn Howard
To: MDOS-BOERegulatory
Cc: Mary Yancy
Subject: Campaign Finance Complaint No. 23-049- Schonert v. Howard
Date: Thursday, August 24, 2023 10:10:09 AM
Attachments: Campaign sign explanation SOS.pdf

CAUTION: This is an External email. Please send suspicious emails to abuse@michigan.gov

Dear Regulatory Department,
 
I am in receipt of the complaint filed alleging that I violated MCL 169.247, and omitting “paid for by
name” on campaign signs.  Please note the attached document that shows campaign signs with the
attached statement attached.  However, it can be pointed out that the ink faded by either sun or
rain which made it not visible.  We will do everything in our power to work with our printers to make
sure this does not occur in the future. But, there was no negligence or intent on our part.
 
We will correct this on any and all future material.  Thank you so much, and if there are any
questions do not hesitate to reach me at 586-944-9076.
 
Jocelyn Howard
 

mailto:jocelynhoward02@outlook.com
mailto:MDOS-BOERegulatory@michigan.gov
mailto:mary.l.yancy@sbcglobal.net
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